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initiate a civil money penalty action 
against any person who knowingly vio-
lates 42 U.S.C. 4852d. 

(b) Amount of penalty. The maximum 
penalty is $11,000 for each violation. 

[65 FR 50593, Aug. 18, 2000] 

§ 30.68 Section 8 owners. 
(a) Definitions. The following defini-

tions apply to this section only: 
Agent employed to manage the property 

that has an identity of interest and iden-
tity of interest agent. An entity: 

(1) That has management responsi-
bility for a project; 

(2) In which the ownership entity, in-
cluding its general partner or partners 
(if applicable), has an ownership inter-
est; and 

(3) Over which the ownership entity 
exerts effective control. 

Effective control. The ability to direct, 
alter, supervise, or otherwise influence 
the actions, policies, decisions, duties, 
employment, or personnel of the man-
agement agent. 

Entity. An individual corporation; 
company; association; partnership; au-
thority; firm; society; trust; state, 
local government or agency thereof; or 
any other organization or group of peo-
ple. 

Ownership interest. Any direct or indi-
rect interest in the stock, partnership 
interests, beneficial interests (for a 
trust) or other medium of equity par-
ticipation. An indirect interest in-
cludes equity participation in any enti-
ty that holds a management interest 
(e.g. general partner, managing mem-
ber of an LLC, majority stockholder, 
trustee) or minimum equity interest 
(e.g., a 25% or more limited partner, 
10% or more stockholder) in the owner-
ship entity of the management agent. 

(b) General. The Assistant Secretary 
for Housing-Federal Housing Commis-
sioner, or his or her designee, and the 
Assistant Secretary for Public and In-
dian Housing, or his or her designee, 
may initiate a civil money penalty ac-
tion against any owner, any general 
partner of a partnership owner, or any 
agent employed to manage the prop-
erty that has an identity of interest 
with the owner or the general partner 
of a partnership owner of a property re-
ceiving project-based assistance under 
section 8 of the United States Housing 

Act of 1937 (42 U.S.C. 1437f) for a know-
ing and material breach of a housing 
assistance payments contract, includ-
ing the following: 

(1) Failure to provide decent, safe, 
and sanitary housing pursuant to sec-
tion 8 of the United States Housing Act 
of 1937 and 24 CFR 5.703; or 

(2) Knowing or willful submission of 
false, fictitious, or fraudulent state-
ments or requests for housing assist-
ance payments to the Secretary or to 
any department or agency of the 
United States. 

(c) Maximum penalty. The maximum 
penalty for each violation under this 
section is $25,000. 

(d) Payment of penalty. No payment of 
a civil money penalty levied under this 
section shall be payable out of project 
income. 

(e) Exceptions. The Secretary may not 
impose penalties under this section for 
a violation, if a material cause of the 
violation is the failure of the Sec-
retary, an agent of the Secretary, or a 
public housing agency to comply with 
an existing agreement. 

[66 FR 63442, Dec. 6, 2001] 

Subpart C—Procedures 

§ 30.70 Prepenalty notice. 

Whenever HUD intends to seek a civil 
money penalty, the official designated 
in subpart B of this part, or his or her 
designee (or the chairperson of the 
Mortgagee Review Board, or his or her 
designee, in actions under § 30.35), shall 
issue a written notice to the respond-
ent. This prepenalty notice shall in-
clude the following: 

(a) That HUD is considering seeking 
a civil money penalty; 

(b) The specific violations alleged; 
(c) The maximum civil money pen-

alty that may be imposed; 
(d) The opportunity to reply in writ-

ing to the designated program official 
within 30 days after receipt of the no-
tice; and 

(e) That failure to respond within the 
30-day period may result in issuance of 
a complaint under § 30.85 without con-
sideration of any information that the 
respondent may wish to provide. 
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24 CFR Subtitle A (4–1–05 Edition) § 30.75 

§ 30.75 Response to prepenalty notice. 
The response shall be in a format pre-

scribed in the prepenalty notice. The 
response shall include any arguments 
opposing the imposition of a civil 
money penalty that the respondent 
may wish to present. 

§ 30.80 Factors in determining appro-
priateness and amount of civil 
money penalty. 

In determining whether to seek a 
penalty, and the amount of such pen-
alty, the officials designated in subpart 
B of this part shall consider the fol-
lowing factors: 

(a) The gravity of the offense; 
(b) Any history of prior offenses. For 

violations under §§ 30.25, 30.35, 30.45, 
30.50, 30.55, and 30.60, offenses that oc-
curred prior to December 15, 1989 may 
be considered; 

(c) The ability to pay the penalty; 
(d) The injury to the public; 
(e) Any benefits received by the vio-

lator; 
(f) The extent of potential benefit to 

other persons; 
(g) Deterrence of future violations; 
(h) The degree of the violator’s culpa-

bility; 
(i) With respect to Urban Homestead 

violations under § 30.30, the expendi-
tures made by the violator in connec-
tion with any gross profit derived; and 

(j) Such other matters as justice may 
require. 

(k) In addition to the above factors, 
with respect to violations under 
§§ 30.45, 30.55, 30.60, and 30.68, the Assist-
ant Secretary for Housing-Federal 
Housing Commissioner, or his or her 
designee, or the Assistant Secretary 
for Public and Indian Housing, or his or 
her designee, shall also consider: 

(1) Any injury to tenants; and/or 
(2) Any injury to lot owners. 

[61 FR 50215, Sept. 24, 1996, as amended at 66 
FR 63442, Dec. 6, 2001] 

§ 30.85 Complaint. 
(a) General. Upon the expiration of 

the period for the respondent to submit 
a response to the prepenalty notice, 
the official designated in subpart B of 
this part, or his or her designee (or the 
Mortgagee Review Board in actions 
under § 30.35) shall determine whether 
to seek a civil money penalty. Such de-

termination shall be based upon a re-
view of the prepenalty notice, the re-
sponse, if any, and the factors listed at 
§ 30.80. A determination by the Mort-
gagee Review Board to seek a civil 
money penalty shall be by a majority 
vote of the Board. 

(b) If a determination is made to seek 
a civil money penalty, the official or 
his or her designee, or the Mortgagee 
Review Board, shall issue a complaint 
to the respondent. The complaint shall 
state the following: 

(1) The factual basis for the decision 
to seek a penalty; 

(2) The applicable civil money pen-
alty statute; 

(3) The amount of penalty sought; 
(4) The right to submit a response in 

writing, within 15 days of receipt of the 
complaint, requesting a hearing on any 
material fact in the complaint, or on 
the appropriateness of the penalty 
sought; 

(5) The address to which a response 
must be sent; 

(6) That the failure to submit a re-
sponse may result in the imposition of 
the penalty in the amount sought. 

(c) A copy of this part and of 24 CFR 
part 26, subpart B shall be included 
with the complaint. 

(d) Service of the complaint. The com-
plaint shall be served on the respond-
ent by first class mail, personal deliv-
ery, or other means. In cases of viola-
tions by mortgagees and lenders of 12 
U.S.C. 1735f–14(b) (1)(D) or (1)(F), or by 
GNMA issuers or custodians of 12 
U.S.C. 1723i(b) (1)(G) or (1)(I), a copy of 
the complaint shall be provided to the 
Attorney General. 

§ 30.90 Response to the complaint. 
(a) General. The respondent may sub-

mit to HUD a written response to the 
complaint within 15 days of its receipt. 
The response shall be considered a re-
quest for a hearing. The response 
should include the admission or denial 
of each allegation of liability made in 
the complaint; any defense on which 
the respondent intends to rely; any 
reasons why the civil money penalty is 
not warranted or should be less than 
the amount sought in the complaint; 
and the name, address, and telephone 
number of the person who will act as 
the respondent’s representative, if any. 
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(b) Filing with the administrative law 
judges. HUD shall file the complaint 
and response with the Chief Docket 
Clerk, Office of Administrative Law 
Judges, in accordance with § 26.37 of 
this title. If no response is submitted, 
then HUD may file a motion for default 
judgment, together with a copy of the 
complaint, in accordance with § 26.39 of 
this title. 

§ 30.95 Hearings. 
Hearings under this part shall be con-

ducted in accordance with the proce-
dures at 24 CFR part 26, subpart B. 

§ 30.100 Settlements. 
The officials listed at subpart B of 

this part, or their designees (or the 
Mortgagee Review Board for violations 
under § 30.35), are authorized to enter 
into settlement agreements of civil 
money penalty claims. Settlement 
agreements may be executed at any 
time prior to the issuing of a notice of 
final determination under § 26.50 of this 
title, and may include sanctions for 
failure to comply with the terms of the 
agreement. 

PART 35—LEAD-BASED PAINT POI-
SONING PREVENTION IN CER-
TAIN RESIDENTIAL STRUCTURES 

Subpart A—Disclosure of Known Lead- 
Based Paint Hazards Upon Sale or 
Lease of Residential Property 

Sec. 
35.80 Purpose. 
35.82 Scope and applicability. 
35.84 Effective dates. 
35.86 Definitions. 
35.88 Disclosure requirements for sellers 

and lessors. 
35.90 Opportunity to conduct an evaluation. 
35.92 Certification and acknowledgment of 

disclosure. 
35.94 Agent responsibilities. 
35.96 Enforcement. 
35.98 Impact on State and local require-

ments. 

Subpart B—General Lead-Based Paint Re-
quirements and Definitions for All Pro-
grams 

35.100 Purpose and applicability. 
35.105 Effective dates. 
35.106 Information collection requirements. 
35.110 Definitions. 
35.115 Exemptions. 

35.120 Options. 
35.125 Notice of evaluation and hazard re-

duction activities. 
35.130 Lead hazard information pamphlet. 
35.135 Use of paint containing lead. 
35.140 Prohibited methods of paint removal. 
35.145 Compliance with Federal laws and au-

thorities. 
35.150 Compliance with other State, tribal, 

and local laws. 
35.155 Minimum requirements. 
35.160 Waivers. 
35.165 Prior evaluation or hazard reduction. 
35.170 Noncompliance with the require-

ments of subparts B through R. 
35.175 Records. 

Subpart C—Disposition of Residential Prop-
erty Owned by a Federal Agency 
Other Than HUD 

35.200 Purpose and applicability. 
35.205 Definitions and other general require-

ments. 
35.210 Disposition of residential property 

constructed before 1960. 
35.215 Disposition of residential property 

constructed after 1959 and before 1978. 

Subpart D—Project-Based Assistance Pro-
vided by a Federal Agency Other 
Than HUD 

35.300 Purpose and applicability. 
35.305 Definitions and other general require-

ments. 
35.310 Notices and pamphlet. 
35.315 Risk assessments. 
35.320 Hazard reduction. 
35.325 Child with an environmental inter-

vention blood lead level. 

Subpart E [Reserved] 

Subpart F—HUD-Owned Single Family 
Property 

35.500 Purpose and applicability. 
35.505 Definitions and other general require-

ments. 
35.510 Required procedures. 

Subpart G—Multifamily Mortgage 
Insurance 

35.600 Purpose and applicability. 
35.605 Definitions and other general require-

ments. 
35.610 Exemption. 
35.615 Notices and pamphlet. 
35.620 Multifamily insured property con-

structed before 1960. 
35.625 Multifamily Insured Property con-

structed after 1959 and before 1978. 
35.630 Conversions and Major Rehabili-

tations. 

VerDate Aug<04>2004 14:20 Apr 21, 2005 Jkt 205077 PO 00000 Frm 00325 Fmt 8010 Sfmt 8010 Y:\SGML\205077.XXX 205077


		Superintendent of Documents
	2017-07-31T21:00:06-0400
	US GPO, Washington, DC 20401
	Superintendent of Documents
	GPO attests that this document has not been altered since it was disseminated by GPO




